
CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

1705 MAIN STREET, DAPHNE, ALABAMA 

NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

     6:30 P.M.  

                                                                  
1.  CALL TO ORDER 

 

2.  ROLL CALL  

 

     INVOCATION / Pastor Chad Stafford with Coastal Church  

 

     PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE  

 

 

      SWEAR IN DISTRICT #7 COUNCILWOMAN ANGELA PHILLIPS / Municipal Judge Michael Hoyt 

 

3.  APPROVE MINUTES: Council Meeting Minutes / November 2, 2015  

  

                                                     Council Work Session Minutes / November 9, 2015  

 

PRESENTATION:  Certificate of Heroic Recognition / Mr. Brenden Tarvar 

 

PUBLIC HEARINGS:   1.) TEFRA / Infirmary Health System Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of Mobile 

  

                                        2.)  Codification of Ordinances / Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk 

                                         

                                                                 

4. REPORTS OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

A. FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry    

Review minutes / November 9
th
  

1.)  Ordinances 

a.) Appropriation of Funds:  Tallent Lane ADEM Permit Fees / Ordinance 2015-70 

 

2.) Resolutions 

a.) Changing City Benefit:  ST Disability Insurance to LT Disability Insurance Coverage / 

Resolution 2015-71  

 

b.) Authorize the Application for the State of Alabama’s Fiscal Year 2016 Transportation Alternative 

Program (TAP) / Resolution 2015-72 

 

             3.)    Motions: 

                    MOTION:  To go out to bid for Sewer Projects 

 

4.)    Financial Reports: 

 Treasurers Report / October 2015 

 

 Sales & Use Tax Collections / September 2015 

 

 Lodging Tax Collections / September 2015 

 

B. BUILDINGS & PROPERTY  COMMITTEE -  Lake  

Review minutes / November 2
nd

  

 

C. PUBLIC SAFETY -  Conaway  

Review minutes / October 19
th
  

 

D. CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE  -  Scott  

 1



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               NOVEMBER 16, 2015                                         PAGE   2 

 

E. PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE / SOLID WASTE AUTHORITY – LeJeune 

 

5. REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS:  

    

A. BOARD OF ZONING ADJUSTMENTS  – Adrienne Jones   

 

B. DOWNTOWN REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY – Conaway  

 

C. INDUSTRIAL DEVELOPMENT BOARD – 

 

D. LIBRARY BOARD - Lake  

 

E. PLANNING COMMISSION – Scott 

Review minutes / September 24
th
  / Review minutes / October 22

nd  
 /  Review Staff Report / November 5

th
  

 

MOTION:  Set a Public Hearing date for December 21, 2015 6:30 p.m. and approve advertising to  

                    consider:   

 

Annexation:    Russell  Steiner 

Location:     Property Located Southeast of Interstate 10 and Blakely River 

Present Zoning:  CR, Conservation Resource, Baldwin County District 10, Baldwin County 

Proposed Zoning: R-1, Low Density Single Family Residential District, City of Daphne      

Recommendation: Unanimous Favorable             

      

F. RECREATION BOARD – LeJeune 

MOTION:  To call a Special Called Council meeting for November 30, 2015 6:30 p.m. to consider plans for  

                     the new recreation facilities, and anything else that is deemed necessary. 

   

G. UTILITY BOARD – Fry 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

      Lease Agreement with Southern Light 

 

7. CITY ATTORNEY’S REPORT 

          

8. DEPARTMENT HEAD’S REPORT 

 

9. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 

a.)   Events Permit /  “Book It For Blake”  5K Run / January 9, 2016  

 

b.)   Events Permit / City  of Hope 5K and 1 Mile Fun Run / April 16, 2016 

 

c.)    MOTION:  Set Public Hearing Dates for December 7, 2015 6:30 p[.m. and January 4, 2016 at 6:30 p.m. to   

                             consider the proposed changes to the voting district lines. 

 

10. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION   

 

11. RESOLUTIONS AND ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Resolution 2015-69 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Declaring Certain Property Surplus & / Authorize  

                                                                             Mayor to Dispose of Property / 5 Crown Vics 

 

     b.)   Resolution 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . TEFRA / Infirmary Health System Special Care Facilities 

                                                     Financing Authority of Mobile 

 2



  

COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA                               NOVEMBER 16, 2015                                         PAGE   3 

 

   

     c.)    Resolution 2015-71. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Agreement to change  

                                                                                        Employees Short-Term Disability Benefit to a Long-Term         

                                                                                        Disability Benefit 

  

     d.)    Resolution 2015-72. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Authorize the Application  for the State of Alabama’s Fiscal 

              Year 2016 Transportation Alternative Program (TAP) 

 

 

        ORDINANCES:  

 

      1ST
   READ     

a.) Ordinance 2015-69. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Adopting and Enacting Amendments to the 2005 Supplement Code           

                                                                             for the City of Daphne 

 

b.) Ordinance 2015-70. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Tallent Lane ADEM Permit Fees 

           

12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS       

13.  ADJOURN 

3



CITY OF DAPHNE 

CITY COUNCIL 

 

ROLL CALL 

 

CITY COUNCIL: 

COUNCILMAN RUDICELL   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LAKE    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN FRY    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN SCOTT    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCILMAN LEJEUNE   PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

COUNCIL PRESIDENT CONAWAY  PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

MAYOR: 

MAYOR HAYGOOD    PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY CLERK: 

REBECCA HAYES     PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

 

CITY ATTORNEY: 

JAY ROSS      PRESENT____  ABSENT____ 

4



5



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e1
 

                                                                                    

1.    CALL TO ORDER: 
There being a quorum present Council President Conaway called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m.       

 

2.    ROLL CALL  
COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT:   Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron Scott;  

Robin LeJeune. 

 

Also present: Mayor Haygood; Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk;  James White, Fire Chief;  David Carpenter, Police 

Chief; David McKelroy, Recreation Director; Kelli Kichler, Finance Director/Treasurer;  Margaret Thigpen, 

Civic Center Director; Adrienne Jones, Planning Director;  Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Anne 

Morris, Reference Librarian; Ashley Campbell, Environmental Programs Manager; Officer Eric Helms, Police 

Department; Dorothy Morrison, DRA/Beautification Committee; Willie Robison, BZA; Don Ouellette, 

Environmental Advisory Committee; Tomasina Werner, Beautification Committee; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation; Beautification Committee members: Rebecca Trosclair,; 

Victoria Phelps, Dana Sawyer; Kiki Mikkelson, Laurel Anderson. 

 

Absent:  Jay Ross, City Attorney; Tonja Young, Library Director; Vickie Hinman, HR Director; Richard 

Merchant, Building Official. 

 

INVOCATION/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

 Officer Eric Helms / Minister with Mars Hill Baptist Church gave the invocation. 

ELECTION OF NEW OFFICERS 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to nominate Councilman Rudicell for the office of Council President.  

Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

THERE BEING NO OTHER NOMINATION COUNCILMAN RUDICELL IS THE NEW COUNCIL 

PRESIDENT. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to nominate Councilman Fry for the office of Council President Pro-

tem.  Seconded by Councilman Scott.  

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

THERE BEING NO OTHER NOMINATIONS COUNCILMAN FRY IS THE NEW COUNCIL 

PRESIDENT PRO-TEM. 

 

6



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e2
 

 

3.    APPROVE MINUTES:    

October 19, 2015 Council Meeting Minutes 
There being no corrections the October 19, 2015 council meeting minutes stand approved. 

 

INTERVIEWS FOR THE DISTRICT #7 COUNCIL SEAT 

 

Council interview Mr. J. Ernest Scarbrough and Mrs. Angela Phillips. 

 

VOTE FOR DISTRICT #7 COUNCIL SEAT 

 

                    NAME                                           VOTES                             TOTAL 

 

Mr. J. Ernest Scargrough 

 

LeJeune, Rudicell 

 

2 

 

Mrs. Angela Phillips 

 

Conaway, Lake, Fry, Scott 

 

4 

 

 

Mrs. Angela Phillips is the new councilwoman for District #7. 

 

Council President Rudicell stated that the swearing in for Mrs. Phillips will be November 16
th

, and he invited 

Mrs. Phillips up to the dais for the rest of the council meeting. 

 

PRESENTATION:  Certificate of Appreciation and Thanks by the Beautification Committee to Rebecca  

                                 Trosclair 

 

Beautification member Laurel Anderson read and presented the certificate of appreciation to Mrs. Rebecca 

Trosclair for her service as Beautification Award Chair along with members Dorothy Morrison, Tomasina 

Werner, Victoria Phelps, Dana Sawyer and Kiki Mikkelson. 

 

PROCLAMATION:  America Recycles Day / November 15, 2015 

 

Councilman LeJeune read and presented the proclamation to the Public Works Director, Richard Johnson.  

Mrs. Johnson reminded everyone of the Recycle Day festivities at city hall on November 14
th

.  
 

4.    REPORT OF STANDING COMMITTEES: 

 A.   FINANCE COMMITTEE – Fry 

The next meeting will be November 9
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

B.   BUILDINGS & PROPERTY COMMITTEE –  
The committee met this afternoon, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  The next meeting will be 

December 7
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

 

 

7



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e3
 

 

C.   PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE – Rudicell  

The next meeting will be November 16
th

 at 4:30 p.m. 

 

D.  CODE ENFORCEMENT/ORDINANCE COMMITTEE – Scott 

 The next meeting will be November 16
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

E.   PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE – LeJeune 

The committee met this afternoon, and the minutes will be in the next packet.  Councilman LeJeune 

reminded everyone again of the Recycle Day events on November 14
th

 at city hall.  The next meeting will be 

December 7
th

 after the Buildings and Property Committee meeting. 

 

5.    REPORTS OF SPECIAL BOARDS & COMMISSIONS: 

      A.   Board of Zoning Adjustments – Adrienne Jones 

The next meeting will be November 5
th

 at 6:00 p.m.  

 

     B.   Downtown Redevelopment Authority – Conaway 

There will not be a meeting in November. The next meeting will be December 2
nd

 at 5:30 p.m. 

 

    C.   Industrial Development Board –  
No report. 

 

    D.   Library Board – Lake 

The Trick or Treat event was very well attended with about 150-200 attending wearing costumes.  The next 

meeting will be November 12
th

 at 4:00 p.m. 

 

    E.   Planning Commission – Scott 

The Site Review meeting will be November 10
th

 at 8:30 a.m., and the regular Planning Commission meeting 

will be November 19
th

 at 5:30 p.m. 

  

F.   Recreation Board – LeJeune 

They are currently getting estimates and drawings, and they will be presented to the Park Team first, and then 

at a special called council meeting to go over the plans. 

 

  G.   Utility Board – Fry 

 The minutes for the September 30
th

 meeting are in the packet.  The next meeting will be November 25
th

 at 

5:00 p.m. 

 

6.   MAYOR’S REPORT 

Mayor Haygood congratulated Mrs. Phillips.  He reported the CDBG block grant is on the Governor’s desk 

awaiting a decision, and the lobbying firm is working to make sure that Daphne gets a grant.  He reported 

that there was a robbery at Regions bank across from the Police Department.  He said that a citizen spotted 

the suspect and gave a description of the vehicle which eventually turned into a high speed chase into 

Mobile.  He gave kudos to the Police Department and the alert citizen.  He also reported that they are 

working on a contract with Southern Light to provide fiber optics to all city buildings which will provide 

high speed internet service. 

8



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e4
 

 

7.  CITY ATTORNEY REPORT: 
No report. 

 

8.   DEPARTMENT HEAD COMMENTS: 

James White – Fire Chief – reported that the new fire truck is at Sunbelt for detailing, and it should be 

delivered next week. 

Ronnie Champion – Daphne Search & Rescue – reported that they have received an Impact 100 grant 

that they have been working on for the last six months.  He thanked Lt. Josh Gibbs for working on the 

grant.  The grant is for $96,000 which they will use to purchase a MS 1,000 Kongsberg Sector Scan Sonar 

which will help them in under water searches, and eliminate time in the water for the divers. This will be 

the only one in the State of Alabama. 

 

David Carpenter – Police Chief – gave thanks to the citizen who looks out for the city and neighbors and 

was able to give a description of the truck and suspect which aided in the arrest of the suspect in the 

robbery at Regions Bank. 

 

David McKelroy – Recreation Director – reported that fall sports are winding down, and he gave the 

upcoming sports schedule.  He said that people being able to register online has really been a big help. 

 

Richard Johnson – Public Works Director – mentioned the Veterans Day Celebration is on Sunday 

November 8
th

 at 2:00 p.m. at Patriots Point.  He said that they were running late with picking up trash, and 

they are working to catch up. 

 

9.  CITY CLERK REPORT:  

         

10.    PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 

Mr. Rod Drummond – 367 Ridgewood Drive – thanked Mrs. Conaway for the past year serving as Council 

President.  The meetings were run very well, and that she spoke well into the microphone. 

 

Mrs. Mary Gibbs – 155 Bayview Drive – spoke regarding flooding and erosion problems on her property.  

She hopes to get some results from the city as soon as possible. 

 

Kevin Spriggs – 23 Signal Hill, Spanish Fort – Owner of businesses in Daphne – endorsed Mrs. Phillips as 

the new council person.  He is glad to see representation from the Malbis subdivision on the council.  He 

spoke regarding the budget, roads, drainage, and his main concerns are security and infrastructure. 

 

Mr. Willie Robison – 560 Stuart Street – thanked Mrs. Phillips for stepping up.  He thanked Mrs. Conaway 

for a great job as Council President. 

 

Mr. Herb Cole – 8903 Bainbridge Drive – Thanked council and mayor for all that they do.  He mentioned 

the Toys for Tot Drive, and making a contribution for the city. 

 

 

9



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e5
 

 

 

11.    RESOLUTIONS & ORDINANCES: 

 

        RESOLUTIONS: 

a.) Resolution 2015-67 . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Set a Public Hearing Date to Consider Adopting the 2015  

                                                                            Supplement of the 2005 Edition of the Codification of                                                                                         

               Ordinances for the City of Daphne, Alabama  

 

     b.)   Resolution 2015-68. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Bid Award: Tiawasee Creek Stream Restoration / North   

                                                                                          State Environmental, Inc. 

 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Resolutions 2015-67 and 2015-68. Seconded 

by Councilman LeJeune. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-67 Seconded by Councilman Lake. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adopt Resolution 2015-68.   Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

ORDINANCES: 

 

 2
ND 

READ 
a.)   Ordinance 2015-58. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Lake Forest Land Acquisitions / 5 Lots 

 

b.)   Ordinance 2015-59. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Appropriation of Funds:  Master Plan for Bayfront / Village Point Park  

                                                                         Preserve Amphitheater & Facility 

 

c.)   Ordinance 2015-60. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  Turning Lanes at Sehoy Blvd. & Longue Vue Blvd.   

 

d.)   Ordinance 2015-61. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Appropriation of Funds:  CR 13 & Hwy 64 Roundabout Lights  

 

e.)   Ordinance 2015-62. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Zone Property Located Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy Cross 

                                                                       Drive / John W. West / B-1, Local Business 

 

f.)   Ordinance 2015-63. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation / Property Located Southwest of Holy Cross Circle and Holy   

10



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e6
 

                                                                      Cross Drive / John W. West                                                                        

 

g.)  Ordinance 2015-64. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Rezone Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of 

County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence Bank / PUD, Planned Unit        

Development 

 

h.)  Ordinance 2015-65. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Pre-Zone Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of 

County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence Bank / PUD, Planned Unit        

Development 

 

i.)   Ordinance 2015-66. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Annexation / Property Located One Quarter Mile South of the Intersection of 

County Road 64 and Pollard Road / Cadence Bank   

 

 

j.)   Ordinance 2015-67. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Revision to the City of Daphne Land Use and Development Ordinance / 

                       Revision of the Zoning Map 

 

k.)  Ordinance 2015-68. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .Adopting the FY2016 Capital & Personnel Budget 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to waive the reading of Ordinances 2015-58, 2015-59, 20215-60, 

2015-61, 2015-62, 2015-63, 2015-64, 2015-65, 2015-66, 2015-67, 2015-68.  Seconded by Councilman Fry. 

 
MOTION CARRIED UNANI OUSLY 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adopt Ordinances 2015-58, 2015-59, 20215-60, 2015-61, 2015-62, 

2015-63, 2015-64, 2015-65, 2015-66, 2015-67, 2015-68.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 
MOTION BY Councilman Fry to amend Ordinance 2015-68 to allocate $25,000 from the surplus of 

the operating budget to go to the flooring update at the Justice Center.  Seconded by Councilman Scott. 

 

VOTE ON AMENDMENT 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

VOTE ON ORIGINAL MOTION AS AMENDED 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 
12.    COUNCIL COMMENTS 

Mayor Haygood thanked Council President Rudicell, as well as Councilman Fry, and said it is great to have 

them serving.  He also thanked Mrs. Conaway for the past year of service.  He said that Ronnie Champion 

was very much a champion for Daphne Search & Rescue, as well as, being a great employee for Public 

11



NOVEMBER 2, 2015 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING 

REGULAR BUSINESS MEETING 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

6:30 P.M. 

P
ag

e7
 

Works. He enjoyed Officer Helm’s prayer. He invited all to the Veteran’s Day Celebration on Sunday.  He 

thanked everyone for their prayers for him and his family in regards to the illness in the family. 

 

Councilwoman Conaway thanked the council members for their support over the past year.  She 

congratulated Council President Rudicell and Councilman Fry, and the newest council person. 

 

Councilman Lake said that it was a pleasure having Mrs. Conaway as Council President, and working with 

her.  He said that it was an honor having Mrs. Phillips on council, and he appreciated her comment on the 

poisoning of the oak trees. 

 

Councilman Fry thanked Mrs. Conaway and Ron Scott for their service this past year.  He said it was a 

privilege to serve with them.  He thanked Mr. Champion for being here tonight.  He congratulated Mr. 

Rudicell and felt he would do a good job.  He is glad to have Mrs. Phillips on board.  He appreciates the staff 

and wants to do as much as they can for the employees.  He mentioned that he had a friend that had his car 

broken into and they had many compliments for the police officer. 

 

Councilman Scott thanked Mrs. Conaway, and congratulated Mr. Rudicell and Mr. Fry. 

 

Councilman LeJeune congratulated Mr. Rudicell and Mr. Fry on their appointments.  He also congratulated 

Mrs. Phillips.  He thanked Mrs. Conaway for the past year of service.  He congratulated Mr. Fry on his 

appointment.  He reminded everyone to come out to Recycle Day on November 14
th

.  He mentioned that they 

try to make decisions for the best of the city, and having all the billboards come down in the city was a smart 

move. 

 

Council member elect Angie Phillips thanked council for the confidence they have in her by putting her in 

the District 7council seat.  She thanked Mrs. Gibbs for bringing her up-to-date on her situation. 

 

Council President Rudicell – thanked Mrs. Conaway and Mr. Scott for the past year of service as Council 

President and Council President Pro-tem.  He also congratulated Mrs. Phillips.  He mentioned that the 

swearing in of Mrs. Phillips would be November 16
th

.   He said that redistricting is on the work session 

agenda for next Monday. 

 

13.   ADJOURN: 

MOTION BY Councilman Lake to adjourn Seconded by Councilman LeJeune. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED AT 8:05 

P.M. 

 

Respectfully submitted by,                                   Certification of Presiding Officer                     

                                                 

__________________________________  _____________________________   

Rebecca A. Hayes,     Pat Rudicell,     

City Clerk       Council President 

12



NOVEMBER 9, 2015 

CITY COUNCIL WORK SESSION 

1705 MAIN STREET 

DAPHNE, AL 

5:30 P.M. 

 

P
ag

e1
 

   

COUNCIL MEMBERS PRESENT: Tommie Conaway; Pat Rudicell; John Lake; Randy Fry; Ron 

Scott; Robin LeJeune; Councilmember-elect Angie Phillips.  

 

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, City Clerk; Kevin, Boucher, Adams & Reese; Adrienne Jones, 

Planning Director; Don Ouellette, Environmental Advisory Committee. 

 

Absent:  Mayor Haygood; Jay Ross, City Attorney. 

 

Council President Rudicell called the meeting to order at 6:30 p.m. 

 

1.  REDISTRICTING / CYNTHIA FEIRMAN 

Mrs. Feirman gave a presentation of the proposed changes to the voting district lines according to 

population which would bring each district within five percent (5%) of each other.  Councilman 

LeJeune stated for the record that there are now five people that represent Lake Forest, and with the 

proposed redistricting there will only be four people representing Lake Forest. 

 

Consensus of council was that they were satisfied with the proposed changes to the district lines, and 

recommended setting two Public Hearings on December 7, 2015 and January 4, 2016 so citizens can 

have an opportunity to comment on the proposed changes.  

 

 

THERE BEING NO FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS, THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 7:13 P.M. 

 

 

Respectfully submitted by,         Certification of Presiding Officer:  

                                                     

                               

___________________________         _____________________________                                                                                  

Rebecca A. Hayes,          Pat Rudicell,                                                                 

City Clerk       Council President                           

  

13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



Buildings & Property Committee Meeting 

Monday, November 2, 2015 

4:30 PM 

Daphne City Hall- Executive Conference Room 

Committee Minutes 

Members present: Councilman John Lake; Councilman Randy Fry; Councilwoman Tommie 

Conaway; Councilman Pat Rudicell; Councilman Ron Scott Councilman Robin LeJeune;  

Also present: Rebecca Hayes, recording secretary; Richard Johnson, Public Works Director; Margaret 

Thigpen, Civic Center Director; Richard Merchant, Building Official; Al Guarisco, Village Point 

Foundation; Selena Vaughn, Village Point Foundation;  Victoria Phelps, Lake Forest Property Owners 

Association 

There being a quorum present the meeting was called to order at 4:31 pm by 

Councilman Lake. 

1.  Public Participation 

No one spoke.  Mr. Lake said there was supposed to be a lady coming, and if she shows up they will 

consider public participation at that time. 

 

2.  Approval of Minutes: October 5, 2015 

There were no corrections to the October 5, 2015 minutes, and the minutes stand approved as written. 

 

3.  Daphne Central Park Report:  Richard Johnson 

Mr. Johnson reported they are paving and striping the parking lot, and tying in with the handicap 

entrance to the sidewalk.  The golf and disc nets will be installed soon.  Richard said in the future they 

need to address the east side of the park.  Councilman Scott said that they need to put some rules in 

place for the park.  Richard said that the city already has an ordinance dealing with park rules, but 

there may need to be some amendments to it for this park. 

 

The park rules issue was recommended to go to the Ordinance Committee for review. 

 

4.  Surplus Property: Suzanne Henson 

Mrs. Henson reported there are five (5) Crown Vics on the list for surplus.  She said that some 

municipalities may want to purchase some of them. 

 

MOTION BY Councilman LeJeune to forward the surplus resolution to the full council 

for consideration on the next council agenda.  Seconded by Councilwoman Conaway. 

 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

 

Public Participation 

Mrs. Marilyn Glover, 9543 Wellington Court – Canterbury Subdivision – spoke regarding a car being 

parked continuously in front of her house which has gone on for over a year, and would like to have 

this stopped. 

 

 

 

38



BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY MINUTES  
NOVMBER 2, 2015 
Page 2 of 3 
 
 

5.  Civic Center, Bayfront Pavilion, and CVB report October): Margaret Thigpen  

Margaret Thigpen distributed and discussed her October report. October 2015 revenue for the Civic 

Center totaled $$17,571 a decrease from October 2014 levels. Year-end projected revenues stood at 

$114,013 below figures listed for FY2014. Margaret mentioned that Mardi Gras is coming up and the 

Mystic Order of Persephone has disbanded so there is one less ball at the Civic Center, and the Krewe 

of Don Q has downsized and will possibly be disbanded by next year.  She gave the Bayfront report of 

actual revenue $8,390 which is down from October 2014, and projected year end revenue of $34,235.  

Special Events revenues for October were $880 and total revenue was $4,920 and expenses were 

$3,447.91. 

 

Bayfront Projects 

The floor and window improvements at the Bayfront Pavilion will be completed by the end of 

November.   

 

Civic Center Projects 

The fire panel is completed, and the roof leaks will be completed in two weeks.   

 

Digital Sign at Civic Center 

Modern Signs cost estimate - $24,000-$28,000.  Mr. Lake wants a digital and way fare sign on I-10 

going east before the Daphne exit.  He thinks this would be a better way to use the money set aside for 

the digital sign instead of having a sign at malfunction junction. 

 

CVB Report 

The new website is in progress and hopefully, it will be done in two – three months.  The Alabama 

Baptists are coming and will be using about 800 hotel rooms.  She is having brochures printed with 

events listed.  

 

6.   Building Inspection Monthly Reports (September):  Richard Merchant 

Richard gave the total permits for October: 

18    Permits were issued / Value $2,955,555 / Permit Fee $15,175 

1      Commercial Permit / Value 885,000 / Permit Fee $5,310  

 

7.   Village Point Bayfront Properties (Follow up/Next Steps: Selena Vaughn 

Selena said they were getting proposals for the design for the Bayfront landscape, and the 2nd read of 

the ordinance for the Master Plan for the design is tonight.  They had someone prepare a design for 

the landscape for Village Point Park Preserve, but that person has now retired. 

 

8.  Gibbs Property (155 Bay View Drive) 

Ms. Campbell said the engineers are doing some modeling working toward a solution. 

 

9.  Chiller Control System HVAC City Hall & Civic Center: BJ Eringman 

The Civic Center work went quickly and inexpensively.  City Hall is all about software, there has been 

$1,800 in parts that have been ordered.  When finished they should be able to control the HVAC from 

anywhere on a laptop. 

 

39



BUILDINGS AND PROPERTY MINUTES  
NOVMBER 2, 2015 
Page 3 of 3 
 
10. Gazebos / May Day Park, Joe Louis Patrick Park and Park City Park 
The resolution was adopted and it was not vetoed by the Mayor that gave the Council President 
authority to negotiate and sign documents related to the gazebos.  Mr. Lake met with the Mayor back 
in May and the gazebos he had picked out were the wrong size.  All of them are 22 feet.  The sizes 
should be 26 feet for Joe Louis Patrick Park and Park City Park and 32 feet for May Day Park.   
 
Consensus of the committee was for the Council President to get with the Finance Director and get 
this straightened out and negotiate a new contract. 
 

12.   Any Other Business to Discuss 

Councilman Scott asked why the burnt barber shop has not been torn down. 

 

Richard said that the owners want to rebuild, but they are waiting on someone to say they can rebuild, 

otherwise, they are not tearing it down.  He said it is not in his realm of authority to give that 

permission.  He said it is in the Mayor’s hands.  Richard said that he has sent an abatement letter to 

the property owners which means if they do not tear it down the city will tear it down. 

 

Next meeting will be held Monday, December 7, 2015 at 4:30pm.  

13.   Adjourn 

 

MOTION BY Councilman Scott to adjourn.  Seconded by Councilman Rudicell. 

MOTION CARRIED UNANIMOUSLY 

 

THERE BEING NOT FURTHER BUSINESS TO DISCUSS THE MEETING ADJOURNED 

AT 5:35 P.M. 

40



41



42



43



44



45



46



47



48



49



50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



RESOLUTION 2015 - 69 
 
 

A RESOLUTION DECLARING CERTAIN PERSONAL PROPERTY SURPLUS  AND 

AUTHORIZING THE MAYOR TO DISPOSE OF SUCH PROPERTY 
 

WHEREAS,  the Department Heads of the City of Daphne have determined that the items listed 
below are no longer required for public or municipal purposes;  and 
 

WHEREAS, the items listed below are recommended for disposal. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED,  by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Daphne 
that  

1- The property listed below is hereby declared to be surplus property, and 
 

DEPT EQ/VEH# DESCRIPTION VIN 

Revenue 102 2002 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W12X130719 

Patrol  205 2005 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71WX5X141416 

Patrol  305 2005 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W55X141422 

Patrol  306 2006 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W86X148785 

Patrol  507 2007 FORD CROWN VIC 2FAFP71W27X148833 

 
          2- The Mayor is authorized to advertise and accept bids through Govdeals.com as  
               contracted for the sale of such personal property, and 
 
          3-  The Mayor is authorized to sell said property to the highest bidder and deposit any and      
               all  proceeds to the General Fund.  The Mayor is further authorized to direct the           
               disposition of any property which is not claimed by any bidder. 
 
 

ADOPTED AND APPROVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

ALABAMA, this               day of                     , 2015. 
           

      

                                                                                                                                                                                           

_____________________________ 

                                                                              Dane Haygood, Mayor 
       

 

ATTEST: 

___________________________ 

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

70



CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

RESOLUTION NO. 2015-70 

 

TEFRA 

INFIRMARY HEATLTH SYSTEM SPECIAL CARE FACILITIES 

FINANCING AUTHORITY OF MOBILE 

 

 

WHEREAS, Infirmary Health System Special Care Facilities Financing Authority of Mobile, a 

public corporation organized under the laws of the State of Alabama (the “Authority”), proposes to issue 

its revenue bonds in an amount not to exceed $250,000,000 (the “Bonds”).  The Bonds will be issued to 

provide financing for the benefit of Infirmary Health System, Inc. (“IHS”) and its affiliates, Mobile 

Infirmary Association (“Mobile Infirmary”), Gulf Health Hospitals, Inc. (“Gulf Health”) and Infirmary 

Health Hospitals, Inc. (“Infirmary Hospitals”).  IHS and its affiliates (collectively referred to as the “IHS 

System Affiliates”) operate health care facilities in Mobile and Baldwin Counties; and 

WHEREAS, the Bonds may be issued in a single series or in two or more series over a period 

ending December 31, 2018; and 

WHEREAS, proceeds of the Bonds will be used will be used for the following purposes: (i) to 

finance the costs of acquiring, constructing and equipping a free-standing emergency room facility (the 

“ER Facility”) to be located on the southwestern quadrant of the intersection of Alabama Highway 181 

and U.S. Highway 90 in Baldwin County; (ii) to finance the costs of renovating, improving and equipping 

IHS’s oncology facilities (the “Oncology Facilities”) located at Mobile Infirmary Medical Center, 

Thomas Hospital and North Baldwin Infirmary; (iii) to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing and 

equipping certain diagnostic and other health care facilities (the “Diagnostic Facilities”) to be located in a 

medical office building being constructed on the northwest corner of Alabama Highway 158 and U.S. 

Interstate 65 in Saraland, Alabama; (iv) to finance the costs of acquiring, constructing, improving, 

expanding, renovating, equipping or furnishing the various existing acute care hospital and outpatient 

facilities (collectively the “Existing System Facilities”) of the IHS System Affiliates; and (v) to refund 

certain outstanding debt or bonds of the IHS System Affiliates incurred or issued to finance the Existing 

System Facilities;   

WHEREAS, the Existing System Facilities include:  (i) Mobile Infirmary Medical Center located 

at 5 Mobile Infirmary Circle (near Springhill Avenue and Mobile Infirmary Boulevard), in Mobile, 

Alabama; (ii) Thomas Hospital, located at 750 Morphy Avenue in Fairhope, Alabama; (iii) Thomas 

Medical Center located at 27961 U.S. Highway 98 in Daphne, Alabama; (iv) North Baldwin Infirmary 

located at 1815 Hand Avenue in Bay Minette, Alabama; (v) Infirmary Eastern Shore Outpatient Center 

located at 7101 Highway 90 in Daphne, Alabama; and (vi) Infirmary LTAC Hospital located at 5644 

Girby Road in Mobile, Alabama.  The Existing System Facilities, the ER Facility, the Oncology Facilities 

and the Diagnostic Facilities are referred to collectively herein as the “Bond-Financed Facilities”.     

WHEREAS, the proceeds of the Bonds will be loaned to one or more of the IHS System 

Affiliates pursuant to one or more loan agreements between the Authority and IHS System Affiliates.  

The loan agreements will provide for loan payments by one or more of the IHS System Affiliates in 

amounts sufficient to pay debt service on the Bonds when due.  The Bonds will be limited obligations of 

the Authority and will be payable solely from the loan payments by the IHS System Affiliates to the 

Authority.  The Bonds will not be general obligations of the Authority and will not in any way constitute 

a debt, liability or obligation of the State of Alabama or any political subdivision of the State of Alabama, 

including without limitation the political subdivisions holding the hearings described above or the 

political subdivisions where the Bond-Financed Facilities are located.  The Bonds will not be payable 

from any tax revenues; and  

71



WHEREAS, a public hearing concerning the proposed issuance of the Bonds was held in the 

Council Chambers at City Hall, 1705 Main Street in Daphne, Alabama at 6:30 p.m. on Monday, 

November 16, 2015; notice of such hearing was given by publication in The Mobile Press Register on 

October 25, 2015 and in The Baldwin Times on October 30, 2015, and such hearing provided an 

opportunity for persons with different views on the proposed issuance of the Bonds and the location and 

nature of the Bond-Financed Facilities to express their views, both orally and in writing. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF 

THE CITY OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA that they hereby approve (i) the issuance of the Bonds to 

finance the improvements and additions to and equipment for Thomas Medical Center and Infirmary 

Eastern Shore Outpatient Center, and to refund certain outstanding debt incurred to finance improvements 

and additions to and equipment for Thomas Medical Center and Infirmary Eastern Shore Outpatient 

Center, and (ii) the location and nature of the Bond-Financed Facilities in the City of Daphne, Alabama, 

in accordance with the foregoing proposal of the Authority.  Such approval is being given pursuant to, 

and solely for the purposes of, the provisions of Section 147(f) of the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as 

amended, and Section 11-62-1(a)(8) of the Code of Alabama (1975).  The consent to and approval of the 

issuance of the Bonds by the Authority should not be construed as expressing any view whatsoever as to 

the financial feasibility of the Bond-Financed Facilities or the adequacy of any security provided for the 

Bonds.   

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY 

OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this _______ day of ______________________, 2015. 

 

 

   

Dane Haygood, Mayor 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

       

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

 

I, Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk of the City of Daphne, Alabama, do hereby certify the foregoing 

to be a true and exact copy of a Resolution approved and adopted by the City Council of the City of 

Daphne, Alabama, at its regular meeting held on the _______ day of ______________________, 2015. 

 

   

Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

 

72



 
RESOLUTION 2015-71 

 
 

A Resolution Authorizing the Mayor to Execute an Agreement 
to Change the Employees Short-Term Disability Benefit to a Long-Term 

Disability Benefit. 
 

 
WHEREAS,  the City of Daphne, Alabama offers various insurance benefits to its 
employees; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne will evaluate benefits offered to employees to 
determine if the coverage can be improved; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne, Alabama, has evaluated different disability 
coverage and has determined it would be beneficial to change from a short term 
disability insurance policy and offer long-term disability insurance benefit to 
increase the length of coverage for the benefit of the employee. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that the City of Daphne hereby: 
 

1) Will offer long-term disability insurance coverage instead of short-term 
disability coverage effective January 2016; and 

2) authorizes the Mayor to execute any and all documents as may be 
required to secure such coverage. 

 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF 
DAPHNE, ALABAMA, this ________ day of ________________, 2015. 
 
 
     __________________________________ 
     Dane Haygood, Mayor 
 
          
 
ATTEST:  
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

73



 

 

RESOLUTION 2015-72 
 
PARK & POLLARD RD SIDEWALKS - RESOLUTION TO AUTHORIZE THE APPLICATION 

FOR THE STATE OF ALABAMA'S FISCAL YEAR 2016 
TRANSPORTATION ALTERNATIVE PROGRAM (TAP) 

 
WHEREAS, the Alabama Department of Transportation (ALDOT) is soliciting applications for 
the Fiscal Year 2016 Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) provided by the Federal 
Highway Administration through the Moving Ahead for Progress in the 21st  Century (MAP 21); 
and 
 
WHEREAS, Transportation Alternatives Program (TAP) funds may be used for Construction of 
on-road and off-road trail facilities for pedestrians, bicyclists, and other non-motorized forms of 
transportation, (including sidewalks & bicycle infrastructure), and/or Construction of 
infrastructure-related projects and systems that will provide safe routes for non-drivers, including 
children, older adults, and individuals with disabilities to access daily needs; and 
 
WHEREAS, TAP funds are capped at a maximum of $400,000.00 ($500,000.00 Project Total) 
and are awarded and distributed according to the cost sharing methodology of 80% Federal / 
20% City for construction cost and construction engineering and testing (CE&I) and 
100% City funding for all related engineering design costs, utility relocations, and R.O.W. 
acquisitions; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City Council has determined the best application of these Grant funds would be 
for a sidewalk along Park and Pollard Roads (Pinehill Dr. to County Road 64), providing a Safe 
Route for all Citizens served by the identified roadway systems and an enhanced pathway for 
pedestrians and recreational users; and 
 
WHEREAS, the deadline for submittal of FY 2016 TAP applications and support documents is 
Friday, January 29, 2016 at 5:00 PM. 
 
NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Daphne that: 

1.) The Mayor and the Director of Public Works are hereby authorized to apply for the 
Transportation Alternatives Program for FY2016 (TAP); and 

2.) The application for Transportation Alternatives Program for FY2016 (TAP) shall be for 
sidewalks along Park and Pollard Roads; and 

3.) If approved and awarded TAP funding, the City will appropriate funds for the project 
equal to 20% of the construction cost and CE&I in addition to 100% of all related 
engineering, utility relocations, and Right of Way acquisition costs. 
 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 
ALABAMA, THIS    DAY OF  , 2015. 

 
 
 
              
       Dane Haygood, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
        
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk 

74



75



76



77



78



79



80



 

 1 

 CITY OF DAPHNE 

 

ORDINANCE NO. 2015-69 

 

An Ordinance adopting and enacting the 2005 Supplement Code for the City of Daphne, 

Alabama providing for the repeal of certain ordinances not included therein; providing a 

penalty for the violation thereof; providing for the manner of amending such Code; and 

providing when such Code and this ordinance shall become effective. 

 

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF DAPHNE, ALABAMA: 

 

SECTION 1:  The Code entitled "Code of Ordinance, City of Daphne, Alabama" published by 

Municipal Code Corporation consisting of Chapters 1 through 21, each inclusive, is adopted. 

 

SECTION 2:  All ordinances of a general and permanent nature enacted on or before August 16, 

1993, and not included in the Code or recognized and continued in force by reference therein, are 

repealed. 

 

SECTION 3:  The repeal provided for in Section 2 hereof shall not be construed to revive any 

ordinance or part thereof that has been repealed by a subsequent ordinance that is repealed by 

this ordinance. 

 

SECTION 4:  Unless another penalty is expressly provided, every person convicted of a 

violation of any provision of the Code or any ordinance, rule or regulation adopted or issued 

in pursuance thereof, shall be punished by a fine of not more than five hundred dollars ($500.00) 

and imprisonment for not more than six (6) months, or both.  Each act of violation and each day 

upon which any such violation shall occur shall constitute a separate offense.  The penalty 

provided by this section, unless another penalty is expressly provided shall apply to the 

amendment of any Code section whether or not such penalty is reenacted in the amendatory 

ordinance.  In addition to the penalty prescribed above, the City may pursue other remedies such 

as abatement of nuisances, injunctive relief, and revocation of licenses or permits. 

 

SECTION 5:  Additions or amendments to the Code when passed in form as to indicate the 

intention of the City Council to make the same a part of the Code shall be deemed to be 

incorporated in the Code, so that reference to the Code includes the additions and amendments. 

 

SECTION 6:  Ordinances adopted after August 16, 1993 that amend or refer to ordinances that 

have been codified in the Code, shall be construed as if they amend or refer to like provisions of 

the Code. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

81



 

 2 

 
ORDINANCE NO. 2015-69               CODIFICATION MANUAL – SUPPLEMENT                 PAGE   2 

                                                                      

 

 

SECTION 7:  Severability Clause - The provisions of this ordinance and the Daphne Code of 

Ordinances adopted hereby are severable. In the event that any of the provisions hereof, or of the 

Daphne Code of Ordinances are declared invalid by a Court of competent jurisdiction, then the 

remaining portions shall remain in full force and effect notwithstanding such invalidity. 

 

SECTION 8:  This ordinance shall become effective upon publication of such notice. 

 

APPROVED AND ADOPTED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF DAPHNE, 

THIS _______ day of ____________, 2015. 

        

 

 

      _____________________________________ 

      DANE HAYGOOD, 

      MAYOR 

       

 

ATTEST: 

 

___________________________________ 

REBECCA A. HAYES 

CITY CLERK 

 

 

                                                                  

82



83



84



ORDINANCE 2015-70 
 

Appropriation for ADEM Permit: Tallent Lane Facility C&D Landfill  
 

WHEREAS, Ordinance 2015-55 approved adopted the Fiscal Year 2016 Budget on 
October 5, 2015; and 
 
WHEREAS, subsequent to the adoption of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget, the City 
Council has determined that certain appropriations are required and should be 
approved and made a part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City of Daphne has applied for permitting from Alabama 
Department of Environmental Management (ADEM) for the Tallent Lane Facility to 
be allowed to receive Construction and Demolition materials (C&D); and 
 
WHEREAS,  additional fees in the amount of $12,435 are required to obtain the 
permit for the Tallent Lane Facility; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED by the City Council of the City of Daphne, 
Alabama, that funds from the General Fund are hereby appropriated and made a 
part of the Fiscal Year 2016 budget in the amount of $12,435 for the ADEM Permit 
for the Landfill at the Tallent Lane Facility.   
 
APPROVED AND ADOPTED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of 
Daphne, Alabama, this                day of                             , 2015. 
 
             

_________________________________ 
                                                                      Dane Haygood, Mayor 
           
 
ATTEST: 
 
___________________________ 
Rebecca A. Hayes, City Clerk  

85



86


	AGENDA
	ROLL CALL SHEET
	Oath of Office - seal - Angie Phillips
	Council Minutes
	Council Work Session Minutes
	Heroic Proclamation
	Public Hearing Info November 16 2015
	Finance Minutes November 9 2015
	Backup to Finance Minutes 11-9-2015
	Building & Property Minutes
	Public Safety Minutes
	Planning Commission Minutes 9-24-15 - 10-22-15
	Set Public Hearing Info for November 16 2015 Packet
	Events Permits - Book it for Blake & City of Hope
	2015-69 - RES - AA-RESOLIST-GOVDEALS
	2015-70 - RES - TEFRA - Infirmary Health System Special Care Facility Financing Authority of Mobile
	2015-71 - RES - Change from ST Disab to LT Disab benefit for employees
	2015-72 - RES - TAP - Park-Pollard Sidewalks-Appl State AL TAP Grant
	Backup to 2015-72 - RES
	2015-69 - ORD - CODIFICATION OF ORDINANCES II
	Backup to 2015-69 - ORD
	2015-70 - ORD - Tallent Lane CD Landfill-Permit Fee
	Backup to 2015-70 - ORD



